RECEIVED

FEB 22 2021

SC Court of Appeals

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

In The Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM CHARLESTON COUNTY
Court of Common Pleas

Jennifer B. McCoy, Circuit Court Judge

Civil Action No. 2015-CP-10-00955

Appellate Case No. 2019-001790

Palmetto Pointe At Peas Island Condominium Property Owners Association, Inc., and Jack Love, Individually, and on behalf of all others similarly situatedPlaintiffs,

vs.

STATEMENT OF ISSUES ON APPEAL

- I. DID THE TRIAL COURT ERR WHEN IT FAILED TO SETOFF THE JURY VERDICT WITH ALL THE SETTLEMENTS THAT WERE ENTERED POST-VERDICT?
- II. DID THE TRIAL COURT ERR WHEN IT FAILED TO SETOFF THE JURY VERDICT WITH THE SETTLEMENTS THAT WERE NOT REMOVED FROM THE TRIAL OF THIS CASE AS ISSUE RELEASE ITEMS?

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On February 13, 2015, Respondents filed a construction defect lawsuit regarding a condominium project located on Peas Island, which is located near Folly Beach, Charleston County, South Carolina. [R.201-222 S&C 2/13/2015] The pleadings were revised several times and various defendants asserted crossclaims and third-party claims. [R.223-242 TCR Ans & 3rd-P Comp. 4/22/2015; R.243-252 Complete Ans 4/27/2015; R.253-262 Complete Ans & CC 7/22/2015; R.263-274 TCR Ans to Complete 8/5/2015; R.342-359 TCR Ans to Am. S&C 11/23/2016; R.360-371 Complete Ans to Am. S&C 11/29/2016; R.372-386 TCR Ans to Complete CC 12/16/2016; R.409-425 Novus Ans & CC 11/16/2017; R.426-446 TCR Ans to 2nd Am. S&C & CC 11/17/2017; R.447-456 TCR Ans to Novus CC 12/1/2017; R.457-469 Complete Ans to 2nd Am S&C & CC 12/11/2017; R.470-478 TCR Ans to Complete CC 4/18/2018] The Respondents' amended complaint was filed November 4, 2016 and the second amended complaint was filed November 2, 2017. [R.275-341 Am. S&C 11/4/2016; R.387-408 2nd Am S&C 11/2/2017] The case was tried before the Honorable Jennifer B. McCoy from May 6 through 16, 2019. Respondents settled with various defendants other than Appellant Tri-County Roofing, Inc. ("TCR") before, during, and after the case was tried. Thirty-three of the thirty-six defendants named in the caption

participated in the lawsuit at some time. There were eight defendants at the start of trial and five when the case went to the jury for deliberations. In their pleadings and at trial, Respondents sought damages for repair costs, lost use claimed during the future repairs, and punitive damages.

On May 16, 2019, the jury returned a general verdict of \$6.5M actual damages against four of the five defendants remaining at trial: Complete Building Corporation, the general contractor (hereinafter “Complete”); TCR, a prime subcontractor to Complete for siding, roofing, and balcony waterproofing; Eloy Alonzo Vasquez, a sub-subcontractor for roofing and waterproofing (hereinafter “Vasquez”); Miracle Siding, LLC and Wilson Lucas Sales d/b/a Miracle Siding, LLC, the sub-subcontractor that installed siding on seventeen of the twenty buildings (hereinafter “Miracle”); and W.C. Services, Inc., a prime subcontractor for fire sprinkler installation (hereinafter “W.C. Services”). [R.116-122 Form 4 filed 5/16/2019; R.1756-1760 Wk-2 Trans pp.836-840] The jury found Complete and TCR were grossly negligent and awarded \$500k in punitive damages against them both. [Id.] The trial judge submitted Complete’s crossclaim for contractual indemnity to the jury. The jury awarded Complete \$1,000 on its crossclaim against TCR. [Id.] The jury returned a defense verdict in favor of W.C. Services on both Respondents’ claims and Complete’s crossclaims. [Id.] After the initial jury verdict was returned, Vasquez and Miracle, which were found simply negligent, argued for a finding of their relative percentages of fault under Section 15-38-15 of the S.C. Contribution Among Tortfeasor’s Act. [R.1760-1782 Wk-2 Trans pp.840-862] The jury found that Vasquez and Miracle were

each five percent (5.00%) responsible for the general verdict award. [R.122 Special Verdict Form; R.1760-1782 Wk-2 Trans pp.840-862]]

The trial judge gave the parties ten (10) days to file their post-trial motions. [R.1782 Wk-2 Trans p.862] After accounting for the weekend and holidays, TCR timely filed its post-trial motions on May 28, 2019. [R.525-545 TCR Post-Trial Motion 5/28/2019] TCR was the only defendant that filed post-trial motions because Complete, Vasquez, and Miracle entered into post-verdict settlements with Respondents. [R.1925-1939 Complete Settlement 6/6/2019; R.2065-2076 Miracle Siding Settlement 5/28/2019; R.2077-2088 Vasquez Settlement 5/28/2019] The post-trial motion hearing was held on Friday, June 7, 2019 where Complete, Vasquez, and Miracle confirmed their settlements with Respondents and Complete withdrew its crossclaims against TCR. [R.1809-1812 Post-T Hrg pp.24-27] The trial judge subsequently issued a Form 4 Order denying TCR's post-trial motions on July 23, 2019, which also allocated a portion of the settlement setoffs and reduced the total general verdict amount against TCR from \$7M (actual plus punitive damages) to \$5.33M. [R.166-167 Form Order 7/23/2019] On July 24, 2019, TCR received an electronic copy of the filed verdict form, which was retroactively file stamped on May 16, 2019, the last day of trial. [R.116-122 Form Order 5/16/2019]

TCR timely filed its motion to reconsider the Form 4 Order on August 5, 2019. [R.620-631 TCR 59(e) Motion 8/5/2019] Although TCR did not abandon any of its post-trial motions, TCR principally addressed setoff in its motion to reconsider. Respondents e-

mailed a memorandum in opposition to the motion to reconsider on August 15, 2019.¹ [R.632-648 Plaintiff Memo 8/15/2019] TCR filed a return to Respondents memorandum on August 23, 2019. [R.649-660 TCR Return 8/26/2019] On September 25, 2019, the trial judge entered her final order denying TCR's motion to reconsider. [R.168-173 Order 9/25/2019] TCR timely filed its notice of appeal with the South Carolina Court of Appeals on October 14, 2019 and served the notice on Respondents and the trial court on October 21, 2019. [R.174-200 TCR NOA] Although the notice of appeal addressed several issues, the only question TCR is prosecuting in this appeal is the trial court's inadequate setoff.

STANDARD OF REVIEW

“The right to setoff has existed at common law in South Carolina for over 100 years.” Riley v. Ford Motor Co., 414 S.C. 185, 195, 777 S.E.2d 824, 830 (2015) (citation omitted). This right to setoff was first codified in 1988 as part of the South Carolina Contribution Among Tortfeasors Act. See Id. Section 15-38-50 of the South Carolina Code provides that “[w]hen a release or a covenant not to sue or not to enforce judgment is given in good faith to one of two or more persons liable in tort for the same injury or the same wrongful death: (1) ... it reduces the claim against the others to the extent of any amount stipulated by the release or the covenant, or in the amount of the consideration paid for it, whichever is the greater....”

“[T]he Act represents the Legislature's determination of the proper balance between preventing double-recovery and South Carolina's strong public policy favoring the

¹ There is no record that Respondents' reply memorandum was filed with the court.

settlement of disputes.” Riley at 196, S.E.2d at 830 (citation and internal quotation omitted). “A nonsettling defendant is entitled to credit for the amount paid by another defendant who settles for the same cause of action.” Rutland v. SC Dep’t of Transp., 400 S.C. 209, 216, 734 S.E.2d 142, 145 (2012) (citing Welch v. Epstein, 342 S.C. 279, 312-313, 536 S.E.2d 408, 425 (Ct. App.2000)). “The trial court’s jurisdiction to set off one judgment against another is equitable in nature and should be exercised when necessary to provide justice between the parties.” Id. “Allowing this credit prevents an injured person from obtaining a double recovery for the damage he sustained, for it is almost universally held that there can be only one satisfaction for an injury or wrong.” Id. (internal quotations omitted; citing Truesdale v. SC Hwy Dep’t, 264 S.C. 221, 235, 213 S.E.2d 740, 746 (1975), overruled on other grounds by McCall v. Batson, 285 S.C. 243, 329 S.E.2d 741 (1985)).

When a prior settlement involves compensation for the same injury for which the jury awarded damages, the right to setoff arises as an operation of law. However, when the settlement involves compensation for an injury different from the one tried to verdict, there is no set off as a matter of law. When the settlement is argued to involve two claims, one of which involves the same injury as the claim tried to verdict and one of which does not, the circuit court must make the factual determination of how to allocate the settlement between the claims.

Stoneledge at Lake Keowee Owners’ Association, Inc. v. IMK Development Co., LLC, 425 S.C. 276, 301, 821 S.E.2d 509, 522 (Ct. App. 2018), reh’g den. (Dec. 13, 2018), cert. granted (Aug. 6, 2019) (citations and internal quotations omitted). And when a plaintiff attempts to allocate the prior settlements, the court should review the allocation under the principles of equity. See eg. Rutland at 216, 734 S.E.2d at 145 (noting it was proper for the trial court to reallocate the proposed settlement allocation because there was no evidence

of conscious pain and suffering, so all the settlement funds were reallocated by the court to the wrongful death claim).

Although not explicitly explained in the case law discussing setoff, the appellate courts analyze the setoff appeals under an abuse of discretion standard. Under this standard of review, the appellate court must give some deference to the ruling by the trial court. See State v. Lyles, 379 S.C. 328, 665 S.E.2d 201 (Ct. App. 2008). A lower court has abused its discretion when its ruling is either controlled by an error of law or based on a factual conclusion lacking evidentiary support. See Wilson v. Dallas, 403 S.C. 411, 743 S.E.2d 746 (2013).

An abuse of discretion occurs when the trial court's ruling is based upon an error of law, such as application of the wrong legal principle; or, when based upon factual conclusions, the ruling is without evidentiary support; or, when the trial court is vested with discretion, but the ruling reveals no discretion was exercised; or when the ruling does not fall within the range of permissible decisions applicable in a particular case, such that it may be deemed arbitrary and capricious.

State v. Allen, 370 S.C. 88, 94, 634 S.E.2d 653, 656 (2006)(citations omitted).

FACTS

1. General Background

This is a construction defect lawsuit involving 40 duplex condominium units at a project called Palmetto Pointe at Peas Island, which is located near Folly Beach, Charleston County, South Carolina (hereinafter the "Project").² [R.201-222 S&C 2/13/2015; R.275-

² The Project also includes a clubhouse and two additional duplex buildings. Only one of the defendants at trial—W.C. Services—acknowledged performing any work on the clubhouse. The two additional duplex buildings were constructed after the buildings in the lawsuit and by different contractors, so they were not joined into the litigation.

341 Am S&C 11/4/2016; R.387-408 2nd Am S&C 11/2/2017] The Project was constructed in 2006-2007 and received certificates of occupancy from January 19 through November 2, 2007. [R.997-998 Wk-1 Trans p.638 ln.18—p.639 ln.14; R.1075 Wk-1 Trans pp.776 ll.17-18; R.2630-2678 Trial Exhibit 789] Numerous parties were involved in the construction of Palmetto Pointe. In fact, thirty-six defendants were named in the caption, and thirty-three defendants participated in the litigation. [R.201-222 S&C 2/13/2015; R.275-341 Am S&C 11/4/2016; R. 387-408 2nd Am S&C 11/2/2017; R.1-5 Dismissal of Union and Browne 8/2/2017; R.6-9 Dismissal of CRG 1/24/2018; R. 10-42; Dismissal of Cornerstone 6/28/2018; R.43-49 Dismissal of H&A 7/10/2018; R.50-59 Dismissal of Novus 7/12/2018; R.60-69 Dismissal of Alderman 8/9/2018; R.70-77 Dismissal of CertainTeed 8/21/2018; R.78-81 Dismissal of Cohens 9/27/2018; R.82-112 Dismissal of Kelly 3/1/2019; R.113-115 Dismissal of Crossclaims vs. Andersen 5/7/2019; R.123-128 Dismissal of Gale 5/20/2019; R.129-131 Dismissal of Tallent 5/24/2019; R.132-143 Dismissal of ARS, et al. 6/6/2019; R.144-156 Dismissal of Atlantic 6/7/2019; R.157-160 Dismissal of Creekside, Mosely, Andersen, Complete, Vasquez, Miracle Siding, and Stanley's 6/7/2019; R.1925-1939 Complete Settlement 6/6/2019; R.1940-1954 Creekside Settlement 6/6/2019; R.1955-1979 ARS Settlement 4/23/2019; R.1980-1994 Atlantic Settlement 4/5/2019; R.1995-2009 Gale Settlement 7/24/2018; R.2010-2018 Novus Settlement 2/22/2018; R.2019-2033 Tallent Settlement 2/22/2019; R.2034-2048 CertainTeed Settlement 7/12/2018; R.2049-2056 Kelly Flooring Settlement 1/25/2019; R.2057-2064 Cornerstone Settlement 4/25/2018; R.2065-2076 Miracle Siding Settlement 5/28/2019; R.2077-2088 Vasquez Settlement 5/28/2019; R.2089-2091 Alderman

Settlement 6/19/2018; R.2092-2106 Stanley's Settlement 5/8/2019; R.2107-2121; Cohen's Settlement 7/12/2018; R.2122-2130; Moseley Settlement May-June, 2019; R.2131-2142 H&A Settlement 1/31/2018; R.2143-2145 Andersen Settlement 4/30/2019; R.116-122 Verdict]

Island Pointe, LLC (hereinafter "IP-LLC"), the developer, entered into an AIA contract dated December 27, 2005, with Complete, the general contractor, for the construction of the entire project, excluding the clubhouse. [R.2148-2182 Trial Exhibit 5A] The IP-LLC and Complete contract lists various duties and the scope of work of Complete, which includes oversight of the entire construction process, coordination of its subcontractor trades, coordination of the architects' plans and specifications that were given to the various subcontractors, plus other obligations and duties. [Id.] After twelve change orders, the total contract amount was \$11,578,454. [R.2194-2198 Trial Exhibit 22; R.1357-1358 Wk-2 Trans p.316 ln.9—p.317 ln.2]

TCR entered into its subcontract with Complete on April 17, 2006 for the installation of the siding and roofs at the project. [R.2183-2193 Trial Exhibit 9] The installation of the waterproof membranes on the decks was added by a change order. The total subcontract between Complete and TCR after change order number twelve was \$1,382,558.24. [R.2201-2202 Trial Exhibit 36; R.1357 Wk-2 Trans p.316 ll.2-8] TCR in turn hired sub-subcontractors to complete its scope of work on the project including Vasquez (roofs and waterproof membranes), and Miracle (installed siding on seventeen of the twenty buildings in the lawsuit). [R.223-242 TCR Ans & 3rd-P Comp 4/22/2015; R.342-359 TCR Ans & 3rd-P Comp 11/23/2016; R.426-446 TCR Ans & CC 11/17/2017] As with

all construction projects, the general contractor, architect, engineers, subcontractors, and material suppliers worked on the Project in some coordinated fashion.

Q. When you were out there doing the work, were you out there by yourself just making stuff up, or were people assisting you?

A. No. No. That, that, that wouldn't happen. Once again, there's, there's so many entities involved here with architects, engineers, people that are way smarter than me that -- I mean, we took our direction from, you know, what they wanted us to do.

Trial Transcript, Week Two, p.371 ll.15-22. [R.1406]

The architect and engineers on the project were involved throughout the entire construction process. The architect provided the plans and specifications, which set forth the entire design intent that Complete was charged with constructing.

Q. Okay, and we talked a little bit about the role of the architect, and you've looked at the specifications already and you -- in response to Mr. Cole's questions, correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And, and it was the architect in its specifications that determined the types of materials that the owner wanted on this project, correct?

A. I would think so.

Q. And, in fact, the architect specified in the case of the siding the size of the siding the owner wanted on this project, correct?

A. I don't know. I was asked to submit two bids for it on two different sidings, so.

Q. You were just shown by Mr. Cole the siding specification prepared by the architect, correct?

A. That's correct.

Q. An architect called for a 9 and a quarter inch ---

A. That is correct.

Q. --- siding?

A. He approved that.

Q. And that's what you installed?

A. That is correct.

Trial Transcript, Week Two, p.385 ln.18—p.386 ln.14. [R.1420-1421]

Q. Okay, and what exactly is a project manual?

A. The project manual lays out the specifications for the project, to include what products are to be used, size, all the different particulars so that we can give an adequate estimate on that project.

Q. Where does the project manual come from? Who, who puts it together?

A. This one looks like it came from SGM and was given to me by Complete Building.

Q. And who is SGM?

A. It's an architectural firm.

Q. Were they involved in the construction process?

A. Yes, sir, they were.

Q. Were they involved during construction as well?

A. Yes, sir.

Trial Transcript, Week Two, p.329 ln. 22—p.330 ln.11. [R.1367-1368]

The architect addressed issues that came up during construction at regular meetings held at the job site.

A. A lot of times we had meetings with the GC, the architect, the engineer, all to collaborate on the project.

Trial Transcript, Week Two, p.350 ll. 24-25. [R.1385]

Q. And when the meetings were held, was there somebody that was in charge of them?

A. Yes, sir. Typically the GC. In this case Buddy Hilton oversaw, along with Gary Stanley, who was the project manager out there.

Q. Do you know how often you were out there at these meetings?

A. Sometimes weekly, sometimes every other week. It really just depended on what phase we're at in the project and how many buildings were going up and what different phases they were.

Trial Transcript, Week Two, p.351 ln.22—p.352 ln.7. [R.1386-1387]

Respondents filed their original summons and complaint on February 13, 2015 alleging construction defects and praying for the common damages of repair costs plus lost use. [R.201-222 S&C 2/13/2015] TCR brought third-party claims against its sub-contractors when it answered the original complaint on April 22, 2015. [R.223-242 TCR Ans & 3rd-P Comp 4/22/2015] Respondents amended their complaint on November 4, 2016 [R.275-341 Am S&C 11/4/2016] and filed a second amended complaint on November 2, 2017. [R.387-408 2nd Am S&C 11/2/2017] The Respondents' amended their pleadings to add new defendants and bring direct claims against the third-party defendants. Despite the number of defendants and the causes of action alleged by the Respondents, the Respondents prayed for the same type of relief: repair costs, lost use, and punitive damages. [R.201-222 S&C 2/13/2015; R.275-341 Am S&C 11/4/2016; R.387-408 2nd Am S&C 11/2/2017] Complete, IP-LLC, and Novus Architects, Inc. f/k/a SGM Architects, Inc.

(hereinafter “Novus”) filed crossclaims against the co-defendants generally alleging claims sounding in either contractual or equitable indemnity. [R.253-262 Complete Ans & CC 7/22/2015; R.360-371 Complete Ans & CC 11/29/2016; R.409-425 Novus Ans and CC 11/16/2017; R.457-469 Complete Ans & CC 12/11/2017]

2. The Parties at Trial

TCR was not the only defendant at trial and it is not the only party that took a judgment at trial. A number of defendants settled prior to trial. Eight defendants were still in the case when the trial started on May 6, 2019. [R.688-737 Wk-1 Trans pp.171-220] Five defendants were still in the case when it went to the jury for deliberations on May 16, 2019: Complete, TCR, Miracle, Vasquez, and W.C. Services. [R.116-122 Verdict] Complete, as the general contractor, was responsible for the entire project. Testimony was provided explaining the role of the general contractor on the job site and its responsibility to coordinate all of the trades as well as the architect and the engineers. [R.844 Wk-1 Trans p.382 ll.6-22; R.886-887 Wk-1 Trans p.461 ln.20—p.462 ln.13; R.1039 Wk-1 Trans p.727 ll.4-15; R.1058 Wk-1 Trans p.746 ll.18-24; R.1069-1070 Wk-1 Trans p.763 ln.10—p.764 ln.19; R.1072-1073 Wk-1 Trans p.768 ln.9—p.769 ln.21; R.1177-1179 Wk-2 Trans p.101 ln.13—p.103 ln.23; R.1366 Wk-2 Trans p.328 ll.14-17; R.1385-1389 Wk-2 Trans p.350 ln.10—p.354 ln.15; R.1455-1456 Wk-2 Trans p.420 ln.5—p.421 ln.8; R.1559-1560 p.569 ln.3—p.570 ln.4] This testimony was supplemented by the language of the contract between IP-LLC and Complete for the construction of the project. [R.2148-2182 Trial Exhibit 5A]

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