**RECEIVED**

**Feb 19 2021**

**SC Court of Appeals**

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  
In the Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM CHARLESTON COUNTY  
Court of Common Pleas  
The Honorable Jennifer B. McCoy, Circuit Court Judge

Case No. 2015-CP-10-00955  
Appellate Case No. 2019-001790

Palmetto Pointe at Peas Island Condominium Property Owners Association, Inc. and Jack Love, individually, and on behalf of all others similarly situated, Plaintiffs,

v.

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

automatic; and 2) highlights the importance of the lack of evidence proffered by TCR to support any part of their setoff claim.<sup>16</sup>

**A. TCR Has Not Preserved its Ability to Argue Equitable or Common Law Setoff on Appeal**

TCR has consistently argued that it is entitled to 100%, non-discretionary setoff under the Act for all settlements other than those it calls “issue release” settlements. *See, e.g.* (R. p. 535, TCR Post-Trial Mot.) (“Applying set off is mandatory.”); *see also* (R. p. 1814, lines 6-7, Hrg. Trans.) (“[S]etoff is a –required by the law. It is not discretionary.”); (R. p. 624, TCR Mot to Reconsider Form 4 Order) (“Applying set off is mandatory.”); (TCR Initial Brief at 27) (“TCR is entitled to complete setoff of the jury verdict by the settlements reached in this case that were not otherwise removed from review by the jury and designated as issue releases.”).

Because TCR failed to argue for an equitable or “common law” setoff in either its post-trial motions or at the post-trial motion hearing, the Trial Court’s Order denying TCR’s Motion to Reconsider did not address TCR’s common law setoff position. Rather, the Trial Court found that TCR “failed to establish that the settlements plaintiffs received in excess of \$1,670,000.00 are damages awarded against a settling joint tortfeasors [sic] who has compensated the Plaintiff for the same claim and for the same injury.” (R. p. 171, Order Denying TCR’s MTR) *citing* (S.C. Code Ann. §15-38-50).

TCR did not move to reconsider or clarify the Court’s final order, and thus the issue is not preserved for appellate review.<sup>17</sup> *Glover v. Stack*, No. 2016-001807, 2019 WL 2024579, at \*2

---

<sup>16</sup> For additional TCR illogical arguments, *see, e.g.*, pages 32-33 of TCR’s Initial Brief, which assert that the failure to grant the additional setoffs results in TCR paying CBC’s fire protection damages. By all appearances, the jury decided against the fire protection claim and awarded zero damages on this issue. (*See* R. pp. 116-122, Verdict Form).

<sup>17</sup> It is unclear to Respondents whether TCR is now arguing for common law setoff in the alternative, as TCR makes tangential references to preventing “double recovery” and related

(S.C. Ct. App. May 8, 2019) (“Although [Appellant] raised [equitable setoff] during the motion hearing, the circuit court’s final orders addressed only Simpson’s entitlement to a setoff under the statute. Because Simpson did not subsequently file a Rule 59(e), SCRCP, motion seeking a ruling on her common law equity argument, it is not preserved for appellate review.”) *citing Elam v. S.C. Dep’t of Transp.*, 361 S.C. 9, 24, 602 S.E.2d 772, 780 (2004) (holding a party must file a Rule 59(e), SCRCP, motion to reconsider when an argument has been raised, but not ruled on, to preserve it for appellate review).

Even if this Court were to disagree and find that TCR *has* preserved the issue of equitable setoff, TCR betrays itself with the final sentence of its Second Amended Initial Brief: “TCR’s requested setoff allocation is the mandated statutory and common law result [...]” (TCR Initial Brief at 46). There is no “mandatory” common law setoff.

**B. TCR is Not Entitled to Automatic, Dollar-for-Dollar Setoff Under the Act Because Settlement Amounts in Excess of the \$1,670,000 Setoff Already Granted Were Paid to the Association for Different Claim(s) for Different Injur(ies) From Those Tried Against TCR and Awarded by the Jury**

TCR takes the position that it is entitled to a dollar-for-dollar setoff of the Contested Settlements, and that the Trial Court has no discretion in the matter:

[S]etoff is a –required by the law. It is not discretionary. [...] This is not a duty; it is not a burden. I don’t have a burden to prove what should be a setoff because the law and the statutes say I’m entitled to it. [...] The reason why this is important is because when we’re talking about setoff what we’re looking at is the damages that are incurred at the end, the injury is what we’re looking at. We’re not looking at whether or not a person put in the same type of flashing, not looking at if the person did the same type—scope of work.

(R. p. 1814, lines 6-7, R. p. 1814, lines 15-17, R. p. 1816, lines 3-8 , Hrg. Trans.). TCR’s argument in both its briefings to the Trial Court and now on appeal that setoff for each penny of the Contested

---

“equitable” principles; however, TCR has made no attempt (either here or in the Trial Court) to show that Plaintiffs have received a double recovery.

Settlements is “**not discretionary**” means that TCR believes it is entitled to setoff pursuant to the South Carolina Contribution Among Tortfeasors Act (the “Act”). S.C. Code § 15–38–10, *et seq.* For this statutory, non-discretionary setoff to attach, however, the Contested Settlements must have been paid to Plaintiffs **on the same claim for the same injury** as that tried to a verdict against TCR. (*See Smith v. Widener*, 397 S.C. at 471-2, *supra*) (emphasis added). The “trigger” for the Act to apply, therefore, is relatively simple, and it turns on the question of whether the settlement(s) were for the “same injuries” as those alleged and tried to a verdict against TCR.

TCR argues that the Act applies because “damages in construction defect cases like [this one] all arise out of the same set of facts or type of injury.” (TCR Initial Brief at 38). And, therefore, each penny of the Contested Settlements was paid for the “same injury” for which the jury awarded damages, and thus TCR is entitled to a dollar-for-dollar setoff for each. (*See Id.* at 35, 37-38, 42; *see also* R. p. 1820, R. pp. 1829-1830, Hrg. Trans.). TCR cites to no South Carolina authority to support this argument; accordingly, it is abandoned. *See Bennett v. Inv'rs Title Ins. Co.*, 370 S.C. 578, 599, 635 S.E.2d 649, 660 (Ct. App. 2006) (noting when appellants fail to cite any case law for their positions and make conclusory arguments, the appellants abandon those issues on appeal).

In South Carolina, however, the question of whether injuries and resulting damages are indivisible for the purpose of setoff in the context of a construction defect suit has already been answered by this Court. Although TCR acknowledges the existence of the highly relevant, factually similar *Oaks* decision, it ignores one of that case’s main holdings: cost of repair damages for distinct and uniquely damaged building components are not the “same injury” for setoff purposes. TCR’s brief discusses setoff precedent in South Carolina as if the *Oaks* does not exist; specifically, TCR ignores that this Court in the *Oaks* found that damages awarded for, *e.g.*, window repair, address a **distinct injury** from damages awarded for, *e.g.*, brick replacement. The *Oaks*

Court ultimately determined that defendants were not entitled to setoff settlements that compensated an association for certain building components, because the damages awarded at trial addressed repairs of other building components. *Id.* at 420 S.C. 424, 439, 803 S.E.2d 475, 483. The same is true here – the damages awarded at trial address repairs of building components different than those addressed by settlement.<sup>18</sup> The *Oaks* holding makes sense, and to hold otherwise would chill settlements and clog the courts. To hold otherwise would be to establish a rule that the plaintiff must always prove a full set of damages in a multi-party complex case, no matter how circumscribed the remaining unsettled issue/damage. Stated differently, if the plaintiff still has to prove his, *e.g.*, stucco defects, the incentive to settle with the stucco subcontractor is reduced.

---

<sup>18</sup> *Oaks* also holds that certain damages attendant to construction defect actions, *i.e.*, loss of market value, are distinct injuries from damages related to the repair of defective items. 420 S.C. 424, 443, 803 S.E.2d 475, 485 (Ct. App. 2017). (“[T]he trial court did not err in awarding Respondents damages for both loss of access to the market and the cost of repairs. [...] [Plaintiffs] suffered two separate injuries with two different sets of damages.”). This is important here because no pre-trial settlements paid the Association for loss of use – a “different” injury the Association asked the jury to include in its verdict. Appellant asserts the prior settlements included loss of use recovery because of the “loss of use” standard language in the releases. The releases, *e.g.*, Atlantic, also include “loss of companionship,” but it is unlikely that Appellant can argue that Plaintiffs were compensated for that. (R. pp. 1984-1985, Atlantic Settlement Agt.). The fact that the releases were comprehensive (using boiler plate language) provides no evidence that Respondent was paid for loss of use. Importantly, the scope of the release was based upon “work performed” and “materials... supplied” by Releasee (Atlantic). *Id.* TCR has not demonstrated that the verdict against TCR is for the work performed or materials supplied by, *e.g.*, Atlantic – and its effort so seek credit for Atlantic’s payment must fail.

TCR implicitly concedes, in multiple ways, that construction defect damages are, in fact, separable, and therefore all injuries relating thereto are not the “same.” For example, TCR’s drumbeat regarding “issue release” settlements actually *support* Plaintiffs’ arguments here. TCR is not entitled to setoff for “issue release[d] items” not because of any formal or informal agreement; rather, TCR is not entitled to that setoff because **those injuries were not tried to the jury, nor did Plaintiffs seek damages related to those injuries against TCR.** TCR’s tacit “agreement” to consider those items as “issue released items” is a fiction, and TCR’s attempt to setoff, e.g., 100% of the framing settlements against the jury’s verdict does not survive the “straight face test” when TCR’s own logic regarding issue-released items is applied. (See TCR Initial Brief at 35) (“TCR is entitled to setoff of all the settlements that were not otherwise removed from the trial of this case [...]”); (See also *Id.* at 43) (“TCR is not seeking to get credit for the items labeled as issue releases twice. TCR concedes that it [...] received the benefit of a lower trial demand when the items labeled as issue releases were taken out of Respondents’ repair cost estimate.”).

As a second example, TCR argues that it would be “fundamentally unfair [...] for TCR to be responsible for repairing the firewall and fireproofing deficiencies arguably attributable to W.C. Services [...] as it would be unfair for W.C. Services to be responsible for the alleged siding deficiencies.” (TCR Initial Brief at 33). How then is it fair for TCR to receive a credit for 100% of prior settlements with defendants with distinct scopes of work to address distinct injuries resulting in distinct damages? TCR cannot have it both ways.

TCR is not entitled to mandatory setoff contemplated by S.C. Code Ann. § 15-38-50 because the Contested Settlements were not paid to compensate Plaintiffs “for the same injur[ies]” as those tried to a verdict. S.C. Code Ann. § 15-38-50 (2005); *see also Smith v. Widener*, 397 S.C. 468, 473, 724 S.E.2d 188, 191 (Ct. App. 2012) (“[W]hen the prior settlement involves

compensation for a different injury from the one tried to verdict, there is no setoff as a matter of law.”). Because TCR is not entitled to setoff as a matter of law, the analysis must shift to an equitable one: has TCR shown that the Trial Court abused its discretion in applying an equitable setoff based upon the allocations proffered by Plaintiffs and supported by the facts in and trial of this case? The answer is no, TCR has not, nor did it make any such attempt.

**C. The Trial Court’s Allocation and Resulting Setoff Were Lawful, Fair, and Just and TCR Has Failed to Meet its Burden Showing Otherwise; Nor Has it Proffered an Alternative Allocation**

The Association’s allocation, the Court’s approval of that allocation, and the resulting setoff of the verdict are reasonable, fair, and supported by both the record and South Carolina law. Importantly, and because TCR believes it is entitled to setoff as a matter of law, TCR does not proffer an alternative setoff based upon the evidence presented at trial or evidence otherwise in the record, nor does TCR argue for a different allocation methodology. (*See generally* TCR Initial Brief). Furthermore, TCR’s reliance on its failed “empty chair” arguments made during trial is misplaced: “empty chair” arguments made by a non-settling defendant do not create a mandatory setoff.

**i. The Trial Court’s Allocation Was Fair, Reasonable, and Supported by South Carolina Law**

Given that the Contested Settlements involved injuries which differed from those tried to a verdict, the Trial Court made the factual determination of to allocate the Contested Settlements to account for any potential overlap. (*See* “Statement of Pertinent Facts”, *supra*, at §B). The Trial Court examined each of the Contested Settlements and found that “only \$1,670,000.00 in settlement[s]” represent “damages awarded against a settling joint tortfeasor who has compensated Plaintiff for the same claim and for the same injury.” (R. p. 171, September 25, 2019, Order Denying TCR MTR). The Trial Court gave an example of one such “factual determination”:

By way of illustration, H and A framing paid \$500,000 for damages to shear walls, window installation, deflecting floors and framing defects. Arguably, none of that settlement represents compensation for damages which are included in the jury's verdict against TCR. Nevertheless, the court in the exercise of its discretion, accepted the plaintiffs' allocation of \$50,000 of that sum as damages potentially representing TCR's joint liability, and the court included that amount in its setoff. **The court analyzed each of the settlements in the same manner.**

(R. p. 171, September 25, 2019, Order Denying TCR MTR) (emphasis added). Taking this example, the Association's allocation of 10% of the framing settlement(s) was not arbitrary.

Rather, the allocation was supported by what was and was not presented to the jury at trial:

- Deflecting floors: no evidence presented that the flooring needs to be removed and/or replaced at the Project. (R. p. 1666, lines 6-10, R. p. 1667, lines 10-14, R. p. 1668, lines 10-14, W-2 Tr. Trans.).
- Windows: no longer part of case, not litigated, and all window product damages removed during closing argument. (R. p. 1666, lines 3-6, R. p. 1667, lines 20-22, R. p. 1668, lines 9-10, W-2 Tr. Trans.).
- Shear Walls: not litigated during trial and not in estimate. (R. pp. 2619-2629, P. Ex. 677).<sup>19</sup>

TCR makes no attempt to show how or why it is entitled to a dollar-for-dollar setoff, or why the Association's reasoned allocation is unfair or unsupported. Instead, TCR attempts to distract from its own lack of evidence by calling the Association's allocation "arbitrary". (TCR Initial Brief at 42).

**ii. TCR Fails to Show Allocation and Resulting Setoff Was Unfair, and Also Fails to Proffer an Alternative Allocation Methodology**

TCR does not explain in its brief *how* any of the settlements totaling the \$3,722,500 *additional* setoff it seeks compensated the Association on the same claim for the same injury as that tried to the jury, because it does not believe that it needs to do so. TCR has realized that it

---

<sup>19</sup> As can be seen from the absence of shear wall damages in both P. Ex. 677 (R. p. 2619-2629) and P. Ex. 1049 (R. p. 2993-3003), the shear wall issue surfaced after the compilation of the original estimates and settled before the adjustment in the revised estimate and is not reflected in either.

cannot make such a showing and instead has permeated its briefing with a flawed initial premise: “damages in construction defect cases like the Palmetto Pointe litigation all arise out of the same set of facts or type of injury.” (TCR Initial Brief at 38).<sup>20</sup> It then uses this fallacious jump-off point to justify its conclusion, which is that TCR is entitled to a non-discretionary setoff (as a matter of law) for all settlements, except for those it calls “issue releases” settlements. (*Id.* at 44). TCR does not believe it has to show, *e.g.*, that the settlement monies paid by the architect were paid to compensate Plaintiffs for the *same claim(s)* for the *same injury(ies)* as those tried to a verdict.<sup>21</sup> Since TCR already submitted its brief, it abandoned any chance it had to resuscitate its argument.

Separately, TCR has abandoned its ability to factually contest the Plaintiffs’ allocation of Contested Settlements and the Trial Court’s approval of the same. TCR’s arguments on appeal do not negate TCR’s lack of setoff evidence proffered to the Trial Court post-trial and do not show how TCR’s proffered allocation (100% setoff of the Contested Settlements) is more fair than

---

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